
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422520

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 2 March 2021

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 10 MARCH 2021 AT 6.00 PM

A VIRTUAL MEETING

You can watch this meeting via this weblink:

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ

Members of the Committee:
Max Thompson (Chair)
Val Shaw (Vice-Chair)
Jerry Avery
Ron Batstone

Jenny Hannaby
Diana Lugova
Robert Maddison

Mike Pighills
Janet Shelley

Substitutes Councillors
Paul Barrow, Dr
Eric Batts
Nathan Boyd

Andy Cooke
Amos Duveen
Hayleigh Gascoigne

Simon Howell
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


2

1. Chair's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chair, and general housekeeping matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 9)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on Wednesday 27 January 2021.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.



3

7. Land North of 
Dunmore Road, 
Abingdon  

Reserved Matters Application 
(Appearance, Landscaping, Layout, 
Scale) - Residential development for 
erection of 425 dwellings within 3 
phases of the North Abingdon 
Development: Western Parcel Area A 
& B and Central Parcel Area A. 
Associated landscaping and 
infrastructure works together with 
additional details as required by 
conditions attached to outline 
planning permission (Ref: 
P17/V0050/O)(as amended by 
drawings and information received 21 
December 2020).

P19/V1998/RM 10 - 40

8. Brakspear's 
Yard, 
Denchworth 
Road, Grove, 
Wantage  

Retrospective application to modify 
the ridge height of the approved 
development, to relocate one 
bedroom from the second floor to the 
roofspace, and to insert two rooflights.

P20/V2810/FUL 41 - 52



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 27 January 2021 at 
6.00 pm

A virtual meeting

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Max Thompson (Chair), Val Shaw (Vice-Chair), Jerry Avery, 
Ron Batstone, Hayleigh Gascoigne (substituting for Councillor Robert Maddison), 
Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Mike Pighills and Janet Shelley

Officers: Paul Bateman, Martin Deans, Sarah Green, Emily Hamerton, Andy Heron,  
George Jackson, Susannah Mangion

Also present: 

Councillor Paul Barrow,  Councillor Eric de la Harpe

Number of members of the public: 11

Pl.205 Chair's announcements 

The Chair ran through housekeeping arrangements appropriate to a virtual meeting.

Pl.206 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Robert Maddison.

Pl.207 Minutes 

The minutes of the meetings held on Wednesday 21 October 2020 and Wednesday 2 
December 2020, were agreed to be a correct record of the meetings. It was agreed that 
the chair sign them as such.

Pl.208 Declarations of interest 

Referring to 39A and 39B Ock Street, Abingdon, (item 10 on the agenda, applications 
P19/V3158/FUL and P20/V2131/LB) the Chair declared that he was a resident of Ock 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 Pl.2

Street, Abingdon, but lived at a sufficiently great distance from the application site to not 
have an interest in the proposals.

Pl.209 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Pl.210 Public participation 

The committee had received a list of public speakers and statements which had been 
made by the public in respect of the applications. These had been circulated to the 
committee prior to the meeting.

Pl.211 P19/V1728/RM - Land at Appleford Road, Sutton Courtenay 
(Former Amey Works) 

Councillor Jenny Hannaby joined the meeting after its commencement and did not hear 
the whole debate on this application and did not participate in the vote on this application.

Owing to telecommunication difficulties, Councillor Diana Lugova did not hear the whole 
debate and did not vote on this application.

The committee considered application P19/V1728/RM a reserved matters application for 
details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the proposed development 
following planning permission P18/V0069/O. (Amended plans received 1 October 2020  
and 4 December 2020 to show amendments to design, housing mix and layout, and 
landscaping).(Residential development of 91 dwellings and associated access) on land at 
Appleford Road, Sutton Courtenay (Former Amey Works).

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.

The planning officer reported that the proposed development comprised 91 dwellings of 1, 
2, 3, 4 and 5 bed units, with a mixture of flats, terraces, semi-detached and detached 
properties. Planning officers had worked hard together to provide safe and attractive 
accessible public open space for the residents. It was intended that a locally equipped 
area of play (LEAP) would be situated to the eastern central area, and a smaller local area 
of play (LAP) would be situated to the south-western corner of the site. The LAP would be 
100 square metres, the minimum sized requirement. The planning officer provided the 
committee with a slide in connection with the management plan. Although this was not a 
matter covered by the planning permission, it was important to inform the committee that a 
private a management company would gift half of the bund area to residents to use and to 
manage.

The planning officer clarified paragraph 5.31 regarding car parking. The development 
would provide 223 car parking spaces, which equated to 2.5 spaces per property, 
representing 43 spaces above the Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) standard.

Mr. Ian Bush, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Ms. Caroline Green, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 Pl.3

In response to a question, it was reported that 12 of the dwellings out of the 91 in the 
development would be installed with electric vehicle (EV) charging points. The committee 
were most supportive in principle of EV points in developments. However, it considered 
that 12 dwellings represented an unacceptably low proportion of all the properties. 

In response to further questions, it was confirmed that the application did not include 
access to Millennium Common; a pedestrian link between the development and 
Millennium Common had been removed at the landowner’s request. The planning officer 
also confirmed that there would not be an environmental impact assessment at this site, as 
the development would not meet the threshold for an assessment. With reference to 
paragraphs 5.3.and 5.4 of the report concerning ‘movement and access’, the planning 
officer reported that OCC as highway authority had reviewed the proposal and raised no 
objections in terms of highway safety. Improving the infrastructure outside the 
development area would not be possible.

In respect of a question regarding a better market housing mix, to include a larger number 
of smaller units, the planning officer reported that the developer had made changes to the 
mix, but overall, the figures were acceptable to the council. The committee were 
concerned at the small size of some of the gardens.

A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission, failed on being put to the 
vote.

A motion moved and seconded, to defer determination of application P19/V1728/RM to 
have a site visit and to allow for further negotiations was declared carried on being put to 
the vote.

RESOLVED: that consideration of application P19/V1728/RM be deferred to facilitate a 
site visit and to allow for further negotiations.

Pl.212 P20/V0526/FUL - Westcot Farm, Westcot, Wantage 

Councillor Jenny Hannaby encountered technical communication problems during the 
presentation of this item. The councillor was unable to participate in or hear the whole 
debate and did not vote on this application.

The committee considered application P20/V0526/FUL an application for the conversion of 
existing farm buildings to form seven family homes with associated parking, amenity 
areas, landscaping, and associated works.(Amended plans and information received 24 
August 2020 as detailed in the accompanying covering letter). (Additional waste vehicle 
tracking plan received 4 September 2020) at Westcot Farm, Westcot, Wantage.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.

The planning officer reported that the proposal site was not located within a designated 
conservation area but was in a rural location. This conversion of redundant farm buildings 
to dwellings had a number of innovatory design aspects associated with it. The National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) placed significant weight on innovatory design 
promoting sustainability. The proposal included making the dwellings sustainable in terms 
of energy use, with solar panels, heat recovery and electric vehicle charging points.

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 Pl.4

The planning officer reported that paragraph 79 of the NPPF also supported homes in the 
countryside if the development would re-use redundant or disused buildings and enhance 
its immediate setting. The planning officer also reported that under Policy DP7 in Local 
Plan Part 2 (LPP2),’’Development in open countryside will not be appropriate unless 
specifically supported by other relevant policies as set out in the Development Plan or 
national policy’’. This proposal complied with that policy. 

The planning officer advised the committee that the conservation officer considered that 
there was scope to convert the existing barns, which would enhance the setting of the 
grade II listed barn and the non-designated assets on the site. In conclusion, the planning 
officer reported that in the view of officers, the proposal represented a good use of a 
brownfield site which was not harmful to neighbours’ visual amenity and was not out of 
character with the area. There were no outstanding technical objections to the proposal, 
notably no highways objection. Officers therefore recommended that the application be 
approved, subject to the conditions listed in the report.

Councillor Tim Comyn, Chairman of Sparsholt Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.

Mr. Tom Tuke-Hastings, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Mr. Tom Pryor, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Mr. David Burson, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

Councillor Paul Barrow, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

In response to a question, relating to paragraph 5.29 of the report, the planning officer 
reported that the intention of a grampian condition was to ensure that off-site works were 
completed prior to the commencement of the main development. The committee noted 
that an aspiration of the development was to install electric vehicle charging points in the 
residents’ parking bays and also the visitors’ parking spaces. Minimal gas boilers would be 
subject to future discussions at the next design stage.  It was noted that window louvres 
would be added to afford additional screening to prevent overlooking. 

In respect of Barn G, the committee was concerned about the preservation of a tall 
leylandii hedge along the north and west boundaries of the site and considered that the 
proposed 2 metres height was not adequate for screening purposes. Therefore, an 
additional condition would be required, in the event of permission being granted, to 
preserve its height to a minimum of 3 metres and to ensure that replanting took place in 
the event of its removal or dying.

The planning officer reported, in response to question from the committee regarding 
potential light pollution, that external lighting on buildings would be controlled by condition, 
whereas internal light emanating from windows was not included. 

A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P20/V0526/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions, including an additional condition in respect of the preservation of the 
hedge along the north and west boundaries of the site:

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 Pl.5

1. Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission
2. Approved plans

Pre-commencement

3. Off site highway improvements to passing places
4. Bat licence submission
5. Biodiversity mitigation and enhancement strategy submission
6. Surface water drainage scheme submission
7. Foul water drainage scheme submission
8. Landscaping and boundary scheme submission

Pre-occupation

9. Access, turning, parking in accordance with plans
10. Contamination remediation and validation report completed
11. External lighting scheme submission
12. Electric charging points in accordance with plans
13. Bicycle storage in accordance with plans
14. Removal of buildings in accordance with plans
15. Materials in accordance with plans/information

Compliance

16. Landscaping scheme implementation
17. Retention of hedges
18. Permitted development removal for alterations and outbuildings
19.  Permitted development removal for boundary changes

Pl.213 P20/V2180/HH - 22 Thornley Close, Abingdon 

The committee considered application P20/V2180/HH for the erection of 1.8m fence. 
(Retrospective) (Additional information - visibility splays rec 29 Oct 2020) (Additional 
information - revised visibility splays and photo rec 11 Nov 2020) at 22 Thornley Close, 
Abingdon.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.

The planning officer reported that the premises where the1.8 metre fence was located 
were on a corner location on a road with modern housing. The site featured existing close 
board fencing either end of the road, and a nearby communal car parking area also had 
this fencing.  It was reported that Abingdon Town Council had concerns about the possible 
impact of the fencing on the character of the area. Council planning officers considered 
that this retrospective application would not be detrimental in the context of this modern 
development, with hard surfacing as a feature, and was in keeping with existing visual 
amenity.

The democratic services officer reported that a statement by the Abingdon Town Council, 
received on the day of the meeting, had been emailed to all members of the committee.

Mr. Jeremy Phelps, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 27 January 2021 Pl.6

Mr. Sumon Bhattacharrya, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

Councillor Eric de la Harpe, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

Mr. Andrew Mason, of Oxfordshire County Council highways department, advised the 
committee regarding visibility splays on this road. He referred to an analogous appeal 
decision in this area of Abingdon, stating that although the visibility splay at Thornley Close 
might not meet normal standards, namely that a driver should see the edge of road from 
43 metres distance and 2.4 metres back into the turning, it would be possible to edge 
forward in safety, as this was a road having very low levels of traffic. Therefore, there were 
no highways safety issues upon which to object.

In response to a question from the committee regarding flooding, the planning officer 
reported that flood mapping of this area was out of date. This was an issue examined 
during the initial modelling for this application and there did not appear to be any flooding 
issues at the present time.

The committee, whilst always supporting the principle of green space features, accepted 
that the landscaping of the area was limited, but in keeping with the local area’s character. 
In addition, it was satisfied with the explanations regarding highways safety, and 
considered that permission should be granted.

A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P20/V2180/HH, subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard:

1.  Approved plans

Compliance:

2.  Materials in Accordance with Application

Pl.214 P19/V3185/FUL & P20/V2131/LB - 39a & 39b Ock Street, 
Abingdon 

This application was deferred due to the meeting guillotine having been reached prior to its 
consideration. It would be considered at the Planning Committee meeting on 11 February 
2021.

The meeting closed at 8.40 pm

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

APPLICATION NO. P19/V1998/RM
SITE Land North of Dunmore Road, Abingdon, 

OX14 1PU
PARISH ABINGDON
PROPOSAL Reserved Matters Application 

(Appearance, Landscaping, Layout, 
Scale) - Residential development for 
erection of 425 dwellings within 3 phases 
of the North Abingdon Development: 
Western Parcel Area A & B and Central 
Parcel Area A. Associated landscaping 
and infrastructure works together with 
additional details as required by 
conditions attached to outline planning 
permission (Ref: P17/V0050/O)(as 
amended by drawings and information 
received 21 December 2020).

WARD MEMBER(S) Margaret Crick
Andy Foulsham

APPLICANT David Wilson Homes Southern
OFFICER Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that reserved matters are approved subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Approved plans 

Pre-Commencement Conditions
2. Submission of Arboricultural Method Statement

Pre-Occupancy or Other Stage Conditions
3. Parking provision before occupancy of each dwelling
4. Acoustic bund: submission of geotechnical details
5. Acoustic bund: full details of drainage and its location
6. Submission of detailed noise mitigation scheme 
7. Detailed planting scheme to be approved 
8. On-plot landscape details to be approved
9. Details of childrens’ play areas to be approved 
10.Updated landscape management plan to be approved
11.Maintenance plan for open space and play areas to be 

approved

Page 10

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V1998/RM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

12.Lodge Hill Park Area: design and footpath location to be 
approved

13.Boundary Treatments to be approved
14.Submission of the verification report for the installed surface 

water drainage system
15.Detailed lighting scheme to be approved
16.PV scheme to be approved

Post Occupancy Monitoring and Management Conditions
17. Implementation of landscaping
18.Garage retention for parking
19.Entrance feature walls

Informatives
1. Landscape: proposed species
2. Woodland Management Plan
3. Public highway works
4. Thames Water

1.0 INTRODUCTION, SITE LOCATION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application seeks approval of Reserved Matters for 425 dwellings across 

three parcels of the North Abingdon strategic housing site. Outline permission 
was granted in 2017 under application ref. P17/V0050/O for up to 950 
dwellings and associated infrastructure.

1.2 At the time of submission, the application site was partially located in 
Sunningwell Parish Council. However, following boundary changes in 2019 the 
site is now wholly located within Abingdon on Thames’ administrative 
boundary and the application is brought to Planning Committee as Abingdon 
on Thames Town Council objects to the proposal.

1.3 The reserved matters for consideration are appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale. Access is from Dunmore Road and was approved as part of the 
outline permission. 

1.4 Site Location
This relatively flat and open field is located at the northern edge of Abingdon. 
The A34 is located immediately to the north-west of the site and Dunmore 
Road to the south. To the west is Tilsley Park. A detailed layout plan is 
attached at Appendix 1 and also illustrated on the image below:

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

1.5 The Proposal
The application area covers three parcels: Western Parcel A, Western Parcel 
B and Central Parcel A, as illustrated on the image below. 

1.6 The proposal has been subject to amendments and additional information in 
revising the design of the scheme and in seeking to address previous 
technical objections from consultees (e.g. the built form not being compliant 
with the Design Code and parameter plans approved under outline 
permission; inadequate quantity and quality of the public open space; location 
and design of the acoustic bund; inadequate landscaping and tree planting 
scheme which did not follow the scheme agreed under planning application 
ref. P18/V1622/DIS).

1.7 The proposal includes 276 private units in a mix of 1 bed & 2 bed apartments, 
2 bed, 3 bed, and 4 bed houses, as well as 149 affordable units (35% in 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

accordance with the S106 agreement) comprising 1 bed & 2 bed apartments, 
2 bed, 3 bed, 4 bed houses with private gardens and a mix of both affordable 
rent and shared ownership. 

1.8 A detailed layout plan is attached at Appendix 2. The layout is designed with a 
series of connected streets off a central Spine Road which has tree lined 
verges and a footway separated from the road and provides four character 
areas to accord with the approved site Design Code. This document has also 
established the vision, mandatory principles and design specification for the 
development which is assessed later in this report.

1.9 Proposed dwellings will be 2 storeys in height with 2.5 and 3 storeys units 
along the main primary road. Two play areas (LEAP and NEAP) are located to 
the north-east of the Western Parcel B and within the northern part of Central 
Parcel A. 

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of the latest responses received to the proposal is below.  A full 

copy of all the comments made including those in respect of previous iterations 
of the proposals can be seen online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

Abingdon on 
Thames Town 
Council

Amended proposal
Objection

 Reiterate the original reasons given in the original 
submission and add:

o Housing mix has been changed and does 
not follow the approved SHMA Mix;

o Ambiguity in the plans illustrating the 
details of the proposed acoustic bund;

o All buildings shall be constructed to the 
highest environmental standards;

o Concerns regarding the proposed junction 
design (access point from Dunmore Road);

o Infrastructure to be provided prior to 
housing units are occupied;

o Local traffic will be worsened by the 
proposal;

o Delivery of the proposed uses (within the 
central part of the allocated site)- there is 
ambiguity regarding the timescales for 
these uses to be delivered;

o The proposal will increase pressure upon 
the local GP surgeries;

 Additional reasons based on the amended 
scheme: 

o There is no clear justification for the 
expansion of the development

Page 13

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

o Parking provision is not made at the 
maximum standard

o Delay on the delivery of the of the play 
equipment 

o There is a risk that a new school may not 
be delivered, and the Town Council would 
like to see confirmation that the school will 
be delivered before the commencement of 
development;

o A condition restricted the number of 
occupations before the Lodge Hill 
interchange is delivered, should be 
imposed. 

Original proposal
Objection

o Housing mix has been changed and does 
not follow the approved SHMA Mix;

o Ambiguity in the plans illustrating the 
details of the proposed acoustic bund;

o All buildings shall be constructed to the 
highest environmental standards;

o Concerns regarding the proposed junction 
design (access point from Dunmore Road);

o Infrastructure to be provided prior to 
housing units are occupied;

o Local traffic will be worsened by the 
proposal;

o Delivery of the proposed uses (within the 
central part of the allocated site)- there is 
ambiguity regarding the timescales for 
these uses to be delivered;

o The proposal will increase pressure upon 
the local GP surgeries;

Sunningwell 
Parish Council

Amended proposal
No comments received

Original proposal
No comments received

St Helen 
Without Parish 
Council

Amended proposal
No comments received

Original proposal
No comments received

Radley Parish Amended proposal

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

Council No comments received

Original proposal
Objection

 Housing mix has been changed and does not 
follow the approved SHMA Mix

Residents 27 letters of objection were received during the initial 
consultation and a further 16 letters of objection in 
relation to the amendment. The objections and 
comments submitted for both, original and amended 
proposals are summarised as follows:

Traffic and Highways
 Increased traffic congestion 
 Deficient junctions to the road network
 Traffic light systems slow traffic and create 

pollution from standing vehicles
 This planning application should not be granted 

until the Lodge Hill Slips have been put in place
 The main mode of transport will be by private car
 More commitment is needed from the applicant 

towards sustainable modes of travel
 No measures proposed to encourage greater use 

of public transport such as buses along Dunmore 
Road and bus lanes on the A34

 Turning right onto Dunmore Road is already 
challenging;

 Travel plan is unrealistic
 There is deficient junctions to the road network
 The proposed T-junctions will add to traffic 

congestion;
 It is totally inappropriate for the main junctions on 

to Dunmore Road (& Twelve Acre Drive) to have 
huge wide bell mouths and central refuges,

 Difficulties of turning right are not confined to the 
rush hour hours and will get worse as a result of 
the development; 

Flood Risks
 The proposal will increase flood risk
 The existing sewer does not have capacity, 

substantial sewer works will be needed down 
most of Boulter Drive and then by unspecified 
routes to a sewer that does have spare capacity

Services/Infrastructure Impacts
 This development is isolated from the rest of 

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

Abingdon by Twelve Acre Drive which is very 
busy and difficult to cross, therefore the proposed 
cycleways within the red-line area may not be 
utilised;

 No consideration given to capacity availability at 
local schools, shops and GPs

 A contribution should be made by the developer 
to ensure provision of a bus service along 
Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive linking 
Abingdon and Oxford

 New housing is placing significant pressure on 
local health services

 Cycle routes to Radley station are discontinuous, 
therefore the residents most likely will use their 
cars;

 The white Horse Leisure centre is already very 
busy – there should be adequate provision made 
towards this infrastructure

Design and Layout
 The amended scheme brings some 

improvements (architectural style is much better) 
but, the height of the houses and block of flats on 
section D-D (facing Dunmore Road) is a concern;

 Is there going to be a path between an adjacent 
recreation ground and Tilsley Park? 

 Lack of linkages to local facilities by cycle or 
walking;

 Existing bridleway should be improved and 
incorporated into the scheme;

 Gap between proposed housing and the A34 
should be widened to provide better acoustic 
mitigation, as the bund may not be sufficient;

Other Matters
 Loss of green space/green field land
 Encroachment into Green Belt is unacceptable 

and unjustified;
 Harmful impact on ecology and wildlife on the 

site;
 Consideration  should be given to brownfield sites 

(e.g. Dalton Barracks) before developing Green 
Belt land;

 Noise impacts for future houses 
 What other improvements are going to be made 

for biodiversity?
 Where is the biodiversity plan?
 Berms with a few trees on them on the northern 

side of the development next to the A34 are not 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

going to do much to keep traffic noise levels 
down for the residents.

 The reduction in social housing provision is 
concerning;

 It appears that the average house size has 
increased

 The change in housing mix will also serve to 
increase the proportion of the development site 
covered by building, parking and other hard 
standing areas.

 This appears to be a case of just flooding people 
with excessive details in the hope that nobody 
has the considerable time needed to plough 
through the numerous documents.

 Is the proposed SuDS to be open water or a 
covered system?

 This planning application does not require strict 
environmental regulations on the housing to 
ensure they are zero carbon.

 Housing mix has been changed and does not 
follow the approved SHMA Mix;

 The Flood Risk Assessment presents 
contradictory evidence and scopes out fluvial 
flood risk saying that the site is fully in Zone 1, 
when small parts of the site are in Zone 2 and 3

 There are no measures to ensure this housing 
scheme meets environmental standards

 No consideration given to air quality which will 
worsen from increased idling traffic

The following issues have also been raised, but these 
matters were considered at outline stage and were 
found acceptable: 

 Increased traffic congestion 
 Deficient junctions to the road network
 Traffic light systems slow traffic and create 

pollution from standing vehicles
 Turning right onto Dunmore Road is already 

challenging;
 The proposed T-junctions will add to traffic 

congestion;
 The proposal will increase flood risk
 The existing sewer does not have capacity, 

substantial sewer works will be needed down 
most of Boulter Drive and then by unspecified 
routes to a sewer that does have spare capacity

 Loss of green space/green field land
 Encroachment into Green Belt is unacceptable 

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

and unjustified;
 Harmful impact on ecology and wildlife on the 

site;
 Consideration should be given to brownfield sites 

(e.g. Dalton Barracks) before developing Green 
Belt land;

 Noise impacts for the existing dwellings is 
inadequately assessed

Comments from North Abingdon Local Planning Group 
Comments

Generally, the proposals seem designed to improve the 
quality of the estate and its environment, so NALPG is 
supportive of that. However, the NALPG raised the 
following issues:

 Amend drainage basin designs to increase public 
open space - on balance, NALPG supports these 
proposals

 Circular footpath round the estate - NALPG 
supports the proposal for a circular path around 
the estate

 Changes to the Acoustic Bund next to the A34 - 
NALPG has some concerns about how land on 
the A34 side of the bund fence will be maintained

  Street typologies and Architectural details - 
NALPG considers that the 5 tall town houses 
directly facing Dunmore Road are too intrusive

 Houses facing Dunmore Road (Materials) - 
NALPG is content with the materials planned for 
these houses. Tiles may be replaced with solar 
panels in some cases, we expect

 Lodge Hill Slip Roads - NALPG supports earlier 
construction of the south facing slip roads at 
Lodge Hill. We consider that they should be built 
as soon as possible.

 Affordable Housing - Whilst having some 
concerns that ‘affordable’ houses can in fact be 
very expensive, NALPG supports the 35% share 
on this estate. NALPG also supports the 
distribution of affordable property across the 
estate

 Tree Planting- NALPG considers that tree 
planting plans for the main road should be 
reconsidered

 Rights of Way - NALPG considers that more 
attention should be paid to maintaining the key 
bridleway to Sunningwell. It would be helpful if the 

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

Pegasus crossing could be opened as soon as 
possible as this is a dangerous place to cross. 
The Bridleway should be improved to allow all 
weather access for pedestrians, cyclists and on 
rare occasions, horses.

 Flats - design and materials - NALPG considers 
that the planned variation in flat block design is a 
definite improvement to the estate

 Sewer system - NALPG still has concerns about 
the sewage disposal arrangements for the site. 
Arrangements for the local centre and the 
housing East of that and beyond the Oxford Road 
up Lodge Hill are even less clear

 Gas main easement - NALPG assumes this 
easement and the trees will consider to be 
protected in any plans for the School.

Oxfordshire 
County Council

Amended proposal 
No objection, subject to conditions

 Specified Visibility Splays 
 Garage Accommodation
 New Estate Roads
 Estate Roads Prior to Occupation of Dwellings

Original proposal 
Holding objection

 Site layout
The carriageway section still only details 2 No. 
typical cross sections and therefore it is unclear 
what the proposed street dimensions and 
footways widths are for differing scenarios 
throughout the site.

Indicative dimensions, particularly in relation to 
cycle and footways, to be applied to the 
appropriate plans

 Swept path analysis
The submitted swept path analysis for an 11.6m 
RCV and 7.9m fire tender have been submitted 
and together with the submitted indicative school 
coach swept path analysis in the locality of the 
proposed school, it can be confirmed that the 
swept path analysis is considered to be 
acceptable. 

 Parking Provisions
The provision of unallocated/visitor parking 

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

spaces, based on the number of allocated spaces 
serving individual dwellings, was previously 
considered and accepted. With regard to the on-
street parallel parking bays indicated on the 
layout, these now indicate suitable hard standings 
behind them and are now considered to be 
acceptable too. 

 Other points
Any proposed trees must not conflict with 
streetlights and must have a minimum of 10m 
separation. Trees that are within 5m of the 
carriageway or footway will require root 
protection.

The 3rd previously agreed access point serving 
the proposed school football pitch has been 
omitted, as indicated on the detailed landscape 
area (3 of 5) plan (Dwg. No. DE187A-L-004 REV 
F). A plan illustrating this access point should be 
submitted.

Housing Officer Amended proposal
No objection

Original proposal
Objection

- Distribution of affordable houses does not comply 
with s106 (clusters were more than 15 units)

Drainage 
Engineer

Further to clarifications submitted to the amended 
Proposal
No objection

Amended Proposal
Holding objection

 Further information should however be provided 
on this element to confirm modelled extents and 
proposed locations of any compensatory flood 
plain storage required. The information presented 
should confirm that the proposed layouts 
submitted can be delivered within the space 
designated as currently it would appear that there 
is an unknown constraint associated with space 
required for flood plain compensation

Original proposal
Holding Objection

 The proposed drainage provision has not 
been developed in accordance with the 

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

requirements, the local standards and the 
approved Flood Risk Assessment;

 Conveyance features have been omitted 
and it is not clear from the overall site plan 
or materials layouts how porous paving will 
be incorporated;

 A pumping station and substation have 
been located in one of the key surface 
water management corridors with SUDS 
features removed;

 At this stage the layouts should 
demonstrate that sufficient space has been 
made available for sustainable drainage in 
accordance with the requirements of the 
outline consent and previously approved 
conditions.

Environment 
Agency (EA)

Amended proposal
No objection 
Subject to any conditions or informatives that were 
imposed to Outline Planning Permission being taken into 
account/implemented 

Original proposal
No objection
Subject to any conditions or informatives that were 
imposed to Outline Planning Permission being taken into 
account/implemented 

Highways 
England

Amended proposal
No objection, subject to the following conditions:

 Prior to the commencement of construction of the 
proposed bund, geotechnical submissions (in 
accordance with DMRB Standard CD622) 
relevant to the construction of the 3m high earth 
bund and 2m fence (set out on drawing A216-
RM-65 Revision 5) shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
(in consultation with Highways England and 
requiring certification by Highways England).

 Prior to the installation of any drainage systems in 
relation to proposed bund, full details of drainage 
and its location shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority 
(in consultation with Highways England). The 
development shall thereafter be undertaken in 

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

strict accordance with the approved details prior 
to the first occupation of the development hereby 
permitted and retained in accordance with the 
agreed specification. No surface water shall be 
permitted to run off from the proposed bund on to 
the Strategic Road Network or in to any drainage 
system connected to the Strategic Road Network. 
No drainage connections from any part of the 
development hereby permitted may be made to 
any Strategic Road Network drainage systems.

Original proposal
Holding objection

 Highways England are unclear as to the location 
of proposed noise bund and we are therefore 
unable to assess if there is likelihood of any 
impact/risk to the safe and efficient operation of 
the A34.

Thames Water Amended proposal
No objection

Waste
 Thames Water are aware of some network 

constraints in the vicinity of the proposed 
development. We are however confident that 
should the planning application be approved, any 
investigations to understand the network 
performance in more detail and if required, 
associated upgrades can be delivered in time to 
serve the development. We will therefore not be 
seeking a planning condition relating to foul water 
network matters.

Water
 The application indicates that SURFACE WATER will 

NOT be discharged to the public network and as such 
Thames Water has no objection, however approval 
should be sought from the Lead Local Flood Authority. 
Should the applicant subsequently seek a connection 
to discharge surface water into the public network in 
the future then we would consider this to be a material 
change to the proposal, which would require an 
amendment to the application at which point we would 
need to review our position.

Original proposal
No objection

Waste
 Thames Water are aware of some network 

Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

constraints in the vicinity of the proposed 
development. We are however confident that 
should the planning application be approved, any 
investigations to understand the network 
performance in more detail and if required, 
associated upgrades can be delivered in time to 
serve the development. We will therefore not be 
seeking a planning condition relating to foul water 
network matters.

Water
 The application indicates that SURFACE WATER 

will NOT be discharged to the public network and 
as such Thames Water has no objection, 
however approval should be sought from the 
Lead Local Flood Authority. Should the applicant 
subsequently seek a connection to discharge 
surface water into the public network in the future 
then we would consider this to be a material 
change to the proposal, which would require an 
amendment to the application at which point we 
would need to review our position.

Countryside 
Officer

Further to clarifications provided on the amended 
proposal
No objection

Amended proposal
Clarification needed on discrepancies amongst the 
submitted plans  

Original proposal
Holding Objection

 CEMP: a specific Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) for biodiversity should 
be submitted (condition 39, subsections J and K), 
detailing all of these measures in one coherent 
document, is submitted to address this 
requirement;

 BEP: It is recommended that plan is amended to 
specific whether or not the feature will be refugia 
wood pile, or hibernacula rubble pile. This detail 
should be provided.

 LEMP: The landscaped areas of the development 
site have been diminished, with a reduction in 
quantity and quality. The landscaping proposals, 
and therefore associated detail contained within 
the LEMP, need to be revisited in light of the 
feedback provided and amended accordingly.

 Watercourse Protection Plan: 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

Further detail, including cross sections and 
structural drawings of the bridges/culverts used in 
the vehicular and pedestrian crossings of the 
watercourse will need to be provided, in addition 
to construction methods statements for these 
features.
- Details and suitable mitigation should be 

provided to minimise impacts of the 
development in, over and directly adjacent to 
the watercourse.

Landscape 
Officer

Amended proposal
No objection, subject to conditions 

 Details Childrens’ Play areas to be submitted
 Detailed planting to be submitted
 Detailed on-plot landscape to be submitted 
 Acoustic bund: barrier to be installed along the 

area with slopes 1:2.5
 Updated landscape management plan to be 

submitted (summarising the planting plans)

Original proposal:
Holding objection:

 Wider Layout: In numerous places the RM 
scheme extends housing development outside 
Residential development parameter area

 Areas of this RM development extend into the 
wider areas of POS at the corners of the site.

 RM scheme extends development closer to an 
already narrow corridor area of POS parallel to 
the eastern side of the retained woodland block 
(plot 194 northward).

 RM scheme pushes development westward 
towards the A34, reducing amount of POS. The 
proposed footpath is now predominately located 
at bottom of acoustic bund slope, meaning the 
only available POS is isolated small areas 
between the footpath and the development area, 
considerable reducing the usability of the space, 
the majority of the open space is now road 
verges.

 RM scheme pushes development southward, 
reducing amount of POS in areas the proposed 
footpath now abuts the development area. This 
southern corridor of POS considerable reduced in 
width and the usability

 Area of POS are blocked both visually and 

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

physically by the placement of substation at their 
entrance. The location of the proposed pumping 
station also detrimentally impacts on the 
accessibility and character of the POS.

 Play area: The proposed application changes the 
style of play provided on site. Details of the play 
areas and associated POS where covered as part 
of P18/V1622/DIS Condition 16- Development 
Delivery Strategy and also with the Outline DAS 
these details should be applied to the site.

 The RM scheme pushes the NEAP back into 
boundary vegetation and over an easement.

 SUDS: The RM scheme proposes a series of 
highly engineered basins. The outline and 
P18/V1622/DIS SUDS proposed basins and 
swale which integrated into design of POS.

 Housing Layout: The proposed planting scheme 
along the spine road is different to that proposed 
as part of the P18/V1622/DIS Condition 16- 
Development Delivery Strategy.

 The Outline DAS contains different types of 
streets; however it is hard to pick up the 
differences in the submitted RM application.

 Throughout the scheme, with the exception of the 
spine road very few street trees have been 
proposed.

 The proposed species for street trees and 
hedgerows do not follow the Outline DAS.

 There are numerous places through the scheme, 
were parking areas are not satisfactory broken up 
and are bookended with unsoften rear garden 
walling.

Forestry Officer Amended proposal
No objection, subject condition

 Detailed Arboricultural Method Statement

Original proposal
Holding objection

 The proposed layout has significantly reduced the 
areas of open space limiting the opportunity for a 
high quality a landscaped scheme to be 
achieved.

 No detailed arboricultural information has been 
provided relating to the impact of the proposal.

 A comprehensive arboricultural method statement 
(AMS) is needed, detailing suitable tree 

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

protection measures across the site.

Natural England Amended proposal 
No objection

Original proposal
No observations

Urban Design 
Officer

Amended proposal 
No objections

Original proposal
Holding objection

 The RM layout plan does not follow the approved 
parameter plans;

 Built form encroach into the areas of POS;
 Clusters and distribution of Affordable Housing 

should be revisited;
 The design and character of the spine road 

should follow the details approved in the Design 
Code

 Position of street lights and trees should be 
revisited;

Crime 
Prevention 
Officer (Thames 
Valley Police)

Amended proposal 
No objection

Original proposal
No objection

Environmental 
Protection 
Team (Noise)

Amended proposal 
No objection, subject to condition

 No development shall take place until a scheme 
to protect the new dwellings from traffic noise has 
been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority

Original proposal 
No objection subject to condition

 Subject to the full implementation of the mitigation 
measures identified in the acoustic report.

Air Quality 
Officer

Amended proposal 
No objection

Original proposal 
No objection

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

Contaminated 
Land Officer

Amended proposal 
No observations

Original proposal 
No observations

Conservation 
Officer 

Amended proposal 
No objection

Original proposal 
No objection

Waste 
Management 
Team

Amended proposal 
No observations

Original proposal 
No objection 
Please ensure that all access paths between the bin 
stores and the collection vehicles (particularly between 
parking spaces eg plots 294-302) are wide enough to 
accommodate the bulk bins.

Oxfordshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group and 
Partners at the 
Long Furlong 
Medical Centre

Amended proposal 
Objection

 The proposal could result in an extra 1,020 
patients. There needs to be extra financial 
support (s106/CIL) for the Abingdon Central PCN 
practice expansion plans. 

Original proposal 
Objection

 The large scale of housing across the district is 
placing extra pressures on overstretched GP 
services. 

SGN Plant 
Protection 
Team

Amended proposal 
No comments received

Original proposal 
No objection, draw attention to the gas supply 
infrastructure in vicinity of the site.

Community 
Infrastructure 
Officer

The outline application was pre-CIL and we have a S106 
Agreement in place. Unless a S73 or FUL application is 
submitted there will be no CIL to pay.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

3.1 P18/V0846/PEJ – Officer advice  (30/10/2020)
Reserved Matters submission for 425 dwellings from outline planning approval 
(P17/V0050/O). Development parcels western area A, B and central area.

P19/V1607/DIS - Approved (15/07/2019)
Discharge of Condition 20 - Archaeological programme of work to be agreed to 
application P17/V0050/O.

P19/V1374/DIS - Approved (11/06/2019)
Discharge of condition 19 Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation on 
application ref P17/V0050/O 

P18/V1622/DIS - Approved (28/05/2019)
Discharge of conditions on application ref. P17/V0050/O: 16 - Development 
Delivery Strategy; 17 - Housing Delivery Document; 18 - Phasing Plan; 30 - 
Super-fast Broadband Strategy; 31 - Community Employment Plan; 37 - Travel 
Plan and Travel Information Pack; 47 - Air Quality Monitoring. (As per amended 
documents and plans submitted on 1 May 2019 and 22nd May 2019)

P18/V0021/PEM - Officer advice (26/04/2018)
Development of a new two storey Marston's family pub and restaurant with 
associated access, parking and landscaping within the Local Centre area of the 
approved outline planning application (P17/V0050/O).

P17/V0050/O - Approved (27/10/2017)
Outline application (with all matters reserved except for principal means of 
access to the highway) for residential development of up to 900 dwellings and 
50 retirement homes (use class C3), together with a local centre, (including: 
2.2HA site for a 1.5fe primary school, community hub, care homes comprising 
up to 80 beds, children's nursery, public house/restaurant, retail and other 
services (use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, B1, C2, D1 and D2) public open 
space, recreation areas and sports pitches (including sports pavilion and multi-
use games area) play areas, acoustic bund with fencing, and associated 
infrastructure including roads, sewers and attenuation ponds (As amended by 
drawings and information accompanying agent's letter dated 2 May 2017)

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The original application (P17/V0050/O) was supported by an Environmental 

Statement that can be viewed on the Council’s website 
(www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk).  The Environmental Statement is considered 
comprehensive, with the main issues discussed where relevant in this report.  
The Statement includes the following assessments:

1. Chapter One – Introduction
2. Chapter Two – Methodology
3. Chapter Three – The Existing Site
4. Chapter Four – Site Alternatives
5. Chapter Five – The Proposed Development
6. Chapter Six – Planning Policy

Page 28

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V0846/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V1607/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V1374/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V1622/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V0021/PEM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V0050/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

7. Chapter Seven – Socioeconomic
8. Chapter Eight – Transport
9. Chapter Nine – Air Quality
10. Chapter Ten – Noise
11. Chapter Eleven – Hydrology and Flood Risk
12. Chapter Twelve – Ecology
13. Chapter Thirteen – Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
14. Chapter Fourteen – Summary of Impacts
15. Non-Technical Summary

The development proposed by this application is considered to fall within the 
ambit of the ES and no further addendum is required.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The main issues for consideration in this application are:

 The principle of development
 Reserved Matters

o Density
o Layout
o Scale and Appearance
o Landscape and Open Space

 Residential amenity
 Affordable housing and housing mix
 Flood risk and drainage
 Traffic and highway safety
 Biodiversity

5.2 The principle of development
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
planning applications to be determined in accordance with the Development 
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan 
for this case comprises of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (the 
LPP1) and the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 (the LPP2). There 
is no neighbourhood plan for Abingdon on Thames and no other 
Neighbourhood Plan covers the site.

5.3 The principle of up to 950 dwellings on this site with access to Dunmore Road 
is established through the extant outline planning permission (P17/V0050/O) 
and the allocation of the site for housing in the LPP1.

5.4 Reserved Matters 
Policy CP37 of the LPP1 states that new development must demonstrate high 
quality design that responds positively to the site and its surroundings, creating 
a distinctive sense of place through high quality townscape and landscaping 
that physically and visually integrates with its surroundings. It sets out further 
design criterion for streets and movement, green infrastructure, social inclusion 
and safe communities, climate change resilience and that development must 
be visually attractive, with scale, height, massing and materials appropriate to 

Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

the site and surrounding area.  Policy CP38 of the LPP1 sets out more detailed 
design criterion required for strategic and major development sites.

5.5 Density
Policy CP23 of the LPP1 requires a minimum net density of 30 dwellings per 
hectare (dph) unless local circumstances indicate that this would have an 
adverse effect on the character of the area, highway safety or the amenity of 
neighbours. 

5.6 The proposed densities are compliant with the density parameter plan 
approved by the Outline application and achieve housing to be designed to a 
density appropriate for the location and vary from lower density areas of up to 
30dph at the edges of the development to 40 dph and above in the central, 
more urbanised part of the larger allocation. Officers consider this is acceptable 
and compliant with Policy CP23 of the LPP1.

5.7 Layout
The proposal responds positively to the Local Plan policies and Design Guide 
with a mix of house sizes and types and these comprise a mix of detached, 
semi-detached and terraced town houses and some flats. These are arranged 
in connected blocks with clear fronts and backs. 

5.8 There is a clear hierarchy of the connected streets including cycleways and 
footways. The streets are connected with focal points, and with corner plots 
that adequately ‘turn’ the corners. There is enclosure and passive surveillance 
of streets and open spaces due to the orientation of dwellings fronting streets 
and those at the edges fronting the open spaces.

5.9 Access to the site is provided via Spine Road that runs through the centre of 
the development, with appropriate landscaping and mature trees along it. 

5.10 There is variation in the set back of dwellings many with front gardens. There 
remains scope for tree planting in the streets with hedges defining front 
gardens. The proposal is considered to comply with core Policy CP37 of the 
LPP1 and the Design Guide Principles. 

5.11 Scale and Appearance
Policy CP38 of the LPP1 requires proposals for housing allocation sites to be 
accompanied by a site-wide design strategy. This was contained in the Design 
Code and the design statement approved under the outline application. It 
analysed the existing built environment near the site to provide inspiration and 
to help shape a locally distinctive development. It is considered that the 
proposal responds positively to these principles.

5.12 Scale is defined by the PPG as “the height, width and length of each building 
proposed within the development in relation to its surroundings”. The heights of 
dwellings are up to 12m (3-storeys flats). House spans are between 9m and 
11m with frontages ranging between 6.5m and 11.2m. These are considered a 
reasonable reflection of development south of Dunmore Road. The scale of 
development is acceptable.

Page 30



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

5.13 The design parameters for this site sought green edges to the western and 
northern parts of the site with development being of a more dispersed and 
lower density. Higher density development is primarily within the central parts 
of the developed areas (and along the Spine Road). This approach allows for 
softening landscaping and appropriate setbacks from the roads. 

5.14 In order to minimise the visual impact of new development, additional areas of 
buffer planting have been provided to reinforce the existing woodland blocks 
and hedgerow corridors and provides integrated SUDS system along the 
southern site boundary. These areas of additional green spaces would also 
provide the ecological resources as well as would serve as the informal public 
open space.  

5.15 The design and appearance of the development reflects the elements of 
traditional architectural features as well as offers the elements of modern and 
contemporary architecture. Likewise, the palette of materials proposed to be 
used during construction includes both traditional and contemporary building 
materials.

5.16 The house types have reasonably balanced elevations, which vary from 
character area to character area. Some dwellings have projecting gables and 
dormer windows. Some of these dormer windows are of a contemporary design 
and provide aesthetical breaks in the elevations. Entrances to houses directly 
face the street and are clearly visible in the public realm. The scale and form of 
entrances relate to their function

5.17 The proposal is considered to comply with core Policies CP37 and CP38 of the 
LPP1 and the Design Guide including Principles DG28, DG29, DG31, DG32, 
DG35 and DG36.

5.18 Landscaping and Open Space
Policy CP44 of the LPP1 confirms that key features that contribute to the 
nature and quality of the district’s landscape will be protected from harmful 
development, and where possible enhanced.  Where development is 
acceptable in principle, proposals will need to demonstrate how they have 
responded to landscape character and incorporate appropriate landscape 
proposals. Policy DP33 of the LPP2 requires major development to provide 
15% of the site as public open space.

5.19 Further to the initial objections raised by the Landscape Officer a set of 
amended plans has been submitted for further assessment. As originally 
submitted the proposal did not accord with the Design Code and parameter 
plans approved at outline. This has been now addressed by the amended 
plans. 

5.20 The submitted plans indicate the provision of public open space will now meet 
this requirement. The proposal includes a number of linear green urban spaces 
that vary in scale and the proposed use with all areas of Public Open Space 
being readily accessible by walking and cycle routes with secure cycle parking 

Page 31



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

proposed at the play areas.

5.21 It is considered that the location and amended quality and quantity of the public 
open spaces and the proposed green corridors would enhance the overall 
quality of the proposal and would increase the opportunities for formal and 
informal recreation. 

5.22 The proposal aims to deliver a variety of native species if a form of trees and 
hedgerows. The proposed SUDS is considered to be adequately integrated into 
the overall design and the wider landscape scheme. The SUDS system would 
serve a dual function of being a part of the drainage scheme as well as by 
providing a habitat network for species and a residential amenity space 
(outside of peak rainfall). 

5.23 It has been agreed with the Landscape Officer that the design and the exact 
details of the LEAP and NEAP can be secured by conditions as there is 
adequate space available for their provision within the proposed layout of the 
development. 

5.24 The proposal therefore complies with the Policy CP44 of the LPP1, Policy 
DP33 of the LPP2 and Principle DG37 of the Design Guide.

5.25 Residential Amenity
Policy DP23 of the LPP2 seeks to ensure that development proposals 
demonstrate that they will not result in significant adverse impacts on the 
amenity of neighbouring uses when considering both individual and cumulative 
impacts in terms of loss of privacy, daylight, sunlight or outlook, or through 
noise disturbance.

5.26 Noise pollution
The site is affected by noise pollution from the A34. A number of mitigation 
measures was identified at the outline stage. One of those mitigations was an 
acoustic bund, that would be located along A34.  The council’s environmental 
protection team, the landscape officer and Highways England initially objected 
to the location and design of the proposed acoustic bund. As a result of these 
objections its design has been revised, together with an updated noise 
assessment. 

5.27 Dwellings are set back from the A34 (c.30-40m), in line with the approved 
Design Code and the parameter plans. The proposed green corridor provides a 
visual buffer between the housing and the highway.

5.28 As illustrated on the amended plans approximately 25m of the green corridor 
along A34 will now consist of a suitable acoustic bund, which is “softened” by 
additional woodland planting, an informal, linear public open space along with 
the tree and shrub planting. The informal footpaths will meander through this 
green corridor, connecting to other footpaths and cycleways to create circular 
recreational routes through the development envisaged at the outline stage.

Page 32



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

5.29 The environmental protection team, landscape officer and Highways England 
no longer objects to the amended scheme. Officers consider the bund is 

acceptable subject to conditions requiring further detail on its construction and 
timing of delivery.

5.30 The noise mitigation conditions require a detailed specification for the acoustic 
fence, acoustic facade treatments and protection of amenity spaces in order to 
demonstrate that the findings from the Environmental Statement on noise are 
achieved and to ensure noise mitigation is provided prior to the occupation of 
any dwelling affected by noise.

5.31 Officers are satisfied that the amenity standard within the new development are 
acceptable in line with the Design Guide. Officers consider that the proposal 
(as amended) is compliant with Policy DP24 of the LPP2.

5.32 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
Affordable Housing
The s106 agreement accompanying the outline permission contains a mix of 
dwelling sizes and floor areas for affordable housing. The proposal accords 
with the s106 and is therefore satisfactory. Affordable housing is evenly 
distributed within the site and accords with the requirements of Policy CP24 of 
the LPP1.

5.33 Market housing and mix
Policy CP22 of the LPP1 expects the market housing mix to be in accordance 
with the council’s current Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 
unless an alternative approach can be demonstrated to be more appropriate 
through the Housing Register or where proven to be necessary due to viability 
constraints.

5.34 It has been raised in the Abingdon Town Council’s comments and objections 
received from residents that the housing mix does not accord with the SHMA 
nor the mix agreed at outline stage. 

5.35 An alternative housing mix to SHMA was agreed at the outline stage. Condition 
5 of the Outline Planning Permission secured the following for the wider site:

 5.5% one bedroom 
 16.3% two bedrooms 
 43.7% three bedrooms 
 34.5% four (or more) bedrooms

5.36 In order to secure compliance with this mix of housing across the whole site, a 
further pre-commencement condition (Condition 17) was imposed at outline 
stage that required a submission of a Housing Delivery Document (HDD). This 
document was submitted and agreed under application ref. P18/V1622/DIS in 
May 2019 and demonstrates how the scheme accords with the agreed mix and 
illustrates the exact distribution of both market and affordable housing across 
parcels of development within the site. Further to that, condition 17 requires 

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

every Reserved Matters application containing residential dwellings to be 
accompanied by an updated HDD. This is to allow flexibility on mix between 
parcels as the site is designed and developed.

5.37 The layout proposed in this application originally sought to vary the location of 
some of the units set out in the HDD. However, following amendment the 
overall housing mix across these three parcels has been retained to accord 
with that previously approved in May 2019 including total numbers, and the 
provision of dwellings that meet the requirements of Cat M4 (2) and Cat M4 (3) 
(former Lifetime Homes standard).
 
The housing mixes for both market and affordable housing is set out in the 
table below:

5.38 The proposed changes are considered acceptable as they are in line with 
Condition 17 of the outline permission, which allows for the revised HDD to be 
provided with each reserved matters application.

5.39 The sizes of the houses meet the adopted space standards and are compliant 
with Policy DP2 of the LPP2. Further to that 10% of the proposed dwellings 
meets the Category M4 (2) and Category M4 (3) (former Lifetime Homes 
standard).  

5.40 Flood Risk and drainage
Core Policy 42 of theLPP1 seeks to ensure that development provides 
appropriate measures for the management of surface water as an essential 
element of reducing future flood risk to both the site and its surroundings.

5.41 The outline application was supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) that 
showed the vast majority of the site lies within Flood Zone 1, the area at least 
risk of flooding. A small part of the western parcel falls within Flood Zones 2 
and 3. 

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

5.42 The drainage engineer initially raised an objection and requested further 
information to be provided to confirm modelled extents and proposed locations 

of any compensatory flood plain storage required can be achieved within the 
layout proposed.

5.43 The amended plan and an updated drainage technical note have been 
submitted which demonstrates that the proposed flood storage can be 
delivered within the space designated. The drainage officer is satisfied with the 
proposals and it is concluded the proposal accords with core Policy 42 of the 
LPP1.

5.44 Traffic, parking and highway safety
Access to Dunmore Road and traffic generation matters were considered 
reasonable at outline stage and this application is not an opportunity to 
reconsider this matter. A financial contribution was secured towards providing 
the southern slip roads at the Lodge Hill A34 junction and to upgrade the local 
transport.

5.45 Vehicular access is from Dunmore Road. Forming the access arrangements 
leads to some loss of semi-mature trees on the southern boundary of the 
application site whilst other mature and semi-mature trees along that boundary 
are to be retained. This aspect of the proposal was considered and agreed at 
the outline stage and will not be re-considered under current reserved matters.

5.46 Encouraging walking and cycling has been a central theme in designing the
different types of streets within the development. A comprehensive network of 
footpaths, cycleways and bridleways have been integrated into the 
development to ensure access to public open space, local facilities and the 
wider countryside. 

5.47 Across the site, a full network of dedicated cycleways and footways links the 
key facilities of the site, reducing the need to travel by car. A continuous 
footpath and cycle path also link the proposal with Tilsley Park. The proposal 
makes provision for a footpath and cycleway link through to the south western 
edge of the development, to link in with the footpath route within the grounds of 
Tilsley Park. A section 106 contribution have been made to facilitate the 
upgrading of the footpath through Tilsley Park to provide a consistent surface 
including a cycleway.

5.48 The Transport Engineer has initially objected to the proposal as there were 
several design issues that required further work to be submitted to the Local 
Highway Authority for consideration. Further to the submission of the amended 
plans the initially raised objection has been removed. Subject to the 
recommended conditions there are no objections to this proposal on highway 
grounds.  

5.49 The proposal provides a total of 877 of allocated parking spaces and 52 of 
unallocated parking spaces which is acceptable. Whilst on-plot parking 
exceeds parking standard requirements, the highway officer does not object to 

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

the amount and distribution of parking spaces.  Parking standards allow 
exceptions to secure appropriate design and on plot parking can accommodate

visitors as well for occupant of the respective dwellings. This amount of parking 
is considered acceptable. 

5.50 Taking all of these matters into account it is considered the proposal is 
acceptable in highway terms and accords with Policies CP35 and CP37 of the 
LPP1.

5.51 Biodiversity
Policy CP46 of LPP1 requires development to avoid losses in biodiversity and 
actively seeks net gains.  

5.52 The Countryside Officer initially objected to the proposal and requested 
additional information to be submitted for further assessment. The  objections 
related to a lack of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
for biodiversity; landscaped areas of the development site being diminished for 
biodiversity enhancement from that envisaged at outline stage and lack of 
detail and suitable mitigation to minimise impact over and directly adjacent to 
the watercourse.
 

5.53 Further to the initial objection raised by the Countryside Officer, a set of 
amended plans and additional documents have been submitted. The requested 
cross sections and structural drawings have been prepared and the 
discrepancies identified by the Countryside Officer have been addressed. The 
seating spaces within the Lodge Hill Park area have been relocated, so they no 
longer are within the 10m buffer zone. It is considered in the Officers opinion 
that the concerns raised by the Countryside Officer have been satisfactorily 
addressed. 
 

5.54 As such, officers are satisfied that subject to conditions the development 
accords with Policy CP46 of the LPP1.

6.0 CONCLUSION AND PLANNING BALANCE
6.1 This application has been considered in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

6.2 The principle of up to 950 dwellings on this site and means of access from 
Dunmore Road have been established through the grant of outline planning 
permission in 2017 (ref. P17/V0050/O).

6.3 The proposal provides an acceptable housing mix with the houses and layout 
being acceptably designed in accordance with the Local Plan policies, the s106, 
and the council’s Design Guide, the site Design Code and parameter plans.

6.4 There are no unreasonable impacts for existing local residents and future 
residents can be reasonably protected from traffic noise. 

6.5 The proposal is considered to accord with development plan policies and 

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

consequently a recommendation of approval is made.

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031: Part 1:
CP1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CP2 - Cooperation on unmet housing need for Oxfordshire
CP3 - Settlement hierarchy
CP4 - Meeting our housing needs
CP7 – Providing supporting infrastructure and services
CP8 - Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP22 – Housing mix
CP23 – Housing density
CP24 – Affordable housing
CP33 – Promoting sustainable transport and accessibility
CP35 – Promoting public transport, cycling and walking
CP36 – Electronic communications
CP37 – Design and local distinctiveness
CP38 – Design strategies for strategic and major development sites
CP39 – The historic environment
CP40 – Sustainable design and construction
CP42 – Flood risk
CP43 – Natural resources
CP44 - Landscape
CP45 – Green infrastructure
CP46 – Conservation and improvement
CP47 – Delivery and contingency

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031: Part 2 
CP4a – Meeting our housing needs
DP2 – Space standards
DP11 - Community Employment Plans
DP16 – Access
DP17 - Transport assessments and travel plans
DP20 – Public art
DP21 – External lighting
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity
DP25 – Noise pollution
DP26 – Air quality
DP27 – Land affected by contamination
DP28 – Waste collection and recycling
DP30 - Watercourses
DP33 – Open space
DP36 – Heritage assets
DP39 – Archaeology and scheduled monuments

Neighbourhood Plans
Abingdon on Thames is not preparing a Neighbourhood Plan.

Adopted Guidance
Vale of White Horse Design Guide 2015

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council –Committee Report – 10 March 2021

2

Developer Contributions – Delivering Infrastructure to Support Development 
SPD – June 2017

Other Relevant Legislation and Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)
Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990
Human Rights Act 1998
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Contact Officer – Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel
Email – planning@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel – (01235) 422600

Page 38



P

a

t

h

T
r
a
c
k

Park

Tilsley

Arena

Athletics

P

a

t

h

P
e
n
 
L
a
n
e

B

A

L

L
A

R

D

C

H

L

E

R

N

E

C

L

R

O

A

D

H

E

V

A

R

O

S

E A

V

E

E

S

O

R

D

R

I

V

E

A

N

D

E
R

C
L

G
IB

S

O

N

C
L

O

S

E

D

O

O

W

E

V

A

E

S
O

R

Lodge Hill

Nursery

Depot

Blake's Oak

Farm

Sugnell

Copse

P

a

t

h

P

e

n

 

L

a

T

r

a

c

k

B

A

L

L

A

R

D

C

H

A

3

4

K

N

O

L L

Y

S

C

L

D

R

N

O

S

N

A

H

E71.28

E71.32

Work Area

N7

N7

N7

N7

N8

N8

N8

N8

N9

N9

N9

N9

P1

P1

P1

P1

P2

P2

P2

P2

P

a

t

h

T
r
a
c
k

Park

Tilsley

Arena

Athletics

P

a

t

h

P
e
n
 
L
a
n
e

B

A

L

L
A

R

D

C

H

L

E

R

N

E

C

L

R

O

A

D

H

E

V

A

R

O

S

E A

V

E

E

S

O

R

D

R

I

V

E

A

N

D

E
R

C
L

G
IB

S

O

N

C
L

O

S

E

D

O

O

W

E

V

A

E

S
O

R

Lodge Hill

Nursery

Depot

Blake's Oak

Farm

Sugnell

Copse

P

a

t

h

P

e

n

 

L

a

T

r

a

c

k

B

A

L

L

A

R

D

C

H

A

3

4

K

N

O

L L

Y

S

C

L

D

R

N

O

S

N

A

H

E71.28

E71.32

Work Area

0 5m 10m 15m 20m

SCALE

25m

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GASGAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GASGAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G
A

S

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G
A

S

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

G

AS

COMMENTREV BY DATE

Project

Drawing Title

Scale

Date

Drawn By Checked By

Drawing Number Revision

North Abingdon

DAVID WILSON HOMES SOUTHERN
Norgate House

Tealgate
Charnham Park

Hungerford
Berkshire

RG17 0YT

Telephone 01488 680 300
Fax 01488 681 594

A trading name of BDW TRADING LIMITED

Oxfordshire

Location Plan

1:1000 @ A0

June 2020

GN

H8018/LP/01 -

KEY

Application BoundaryAppendix 1

P
age 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
A34

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
71 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
71 65

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
70 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
LINES 81.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
LINES 74 87

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
LINES 79.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
LINES 74.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
68 00

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
LINES 75.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
LINES 80.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
LINES 77.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
E71.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
E71.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
76.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
74.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
72.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
70.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
70.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
70.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
69.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
69.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
69.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
69.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
69.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
69.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
69.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
70.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
70.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
71.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
71.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
69.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
71.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
71.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
71.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
66.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
1.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
1.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
1.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
1.6



Appendix 2

P
age 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

APPLICATION NO. P20/V2810/FUL
SITE Brakspear’s Yard, Denchworth Road, 

Grove, Wantage, OX12 0AZ
PARISH GROVE
PROPOSAL Retrospective application to modify the 

ridge height of the approved 
development, to relocate one bedroom 
from the second floor to the roofspace, 
and to insert two rooflights

WARD MEMBER(S) Ron Batstone
Grove North Ward Vacancy

APPLICANT D Pink Investments Ltd
OFFICER Martin Deans

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

Compliance
1.  Approved plans
2.  Remove Rights for Further Roof Accommodation

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This is a retrospective planning application for changes to a development of 14 

flats in Grove, which is nearly completed. It has been referred to committee by 
the ward member, Ron Batstone. The application seeks permission for 
changes made between the development as approved and the development 
as built.

1.2 The site lies on the junction of Denchworth Road and Newlands Drive. The 
changes made are as follows:

 An increase In the height of the ridge and gables of the main three-
storey element of the building by approximately 600mm, from 11.7m to 
12.3m

 The relocation of one bedroom in Flat 10 from the second floor to the 
roofspace with the addition of two rooflights in the front, west elevation

The application was amended to include the second element and re-
consultation was carried out on 29 January 2021 for 21 days.

1.3 The site location plan, which shows the previous buildings on the site, is below 
and the application plans are attached at Appendix 1.

Page 41

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V2810/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Full copies of all representations that have been made can be found at the 
council’s website, www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Grove Parish Council First Consultation:
Object on the grounds that, if allowed, there will be 
nothing to prevent more flats being added to this 
overdeveloped site

Second Consultation:
Any comments received will be reported to 
committee

Neighbours First Consultation:
Two neighbours object on the following grounds

 The changes make worse a development 
that is unattractive, out of keeping with its 

Page 42

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

location, and harmful to neighbours
 Original statements made about the 

suitability of the development have proved 
false

 The permitted lower roof was requested by 
planning committee

 Approval will encourage further rule-
breaking in the future

 The application should be refused and the 
roof height should be reduced

One neighbour has written with the following 
observations:

 We have sympathy for adjacent residents
 We opposed the development but calling it 

an eyesore overlooks the fact it replaced a 
scrap yard

 Better to encourage completion of the 
development to end disruption as soon as 
possible

Second Consultation:
Any comments received will be reported to the 
meeting

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 VE20/355 – Enforcement Query

Development not built in accordance with the approved plans for P16/V0527/O 
& P17/V0134/RM.

P18/V2140/FUL - Approved (02/11/2018)
Removal of condition 3 (Arboricultural method statement) of Planning 
Permission P17/V0134/RM

P17/V2398/DIS - Approved (14/11/2017)
Discharge of conditions 5 (access), 6 (construction traffic management), 7 ( 
contaminated land risk assessment), 8 ( surface water)  and 9 ( parking of 
bicycles)of Planning Permission P16/V0527/O and conditions 3 (arboricultural 
method statement), 4 (materials) and 6 (preventing of parking in front of bin 
store) of Planning Permission P17/V0134/RM

Demolition of existing bungalow and industrial workshops/storage sheds. 
Erection of 14no flats, car parking, landscape and works there to.

P17/V0134/RM - Approved (23/08/2017)
Reserved matters application following outline planning permission 
P16/V0527/O (which permitted 14 flats, access only approved) for appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale (as amended by revised building design and 
layout plans received 21 April 2017, further revised by amended landscape 

Page 43

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=VE20/355
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2140/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V2398/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V0134/RM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

details received 26 May 2017, further amended by revised elevations and floor 
plans to reduce height of two storey wing received 30 May 2017, and further 
amended by revised elevations and floor plans to reduce roof pitch, remove 
balconies and replace brick on two storey wing with render on 22 June 2017).

P16/V0527/O - Approved (10/06/2016)
Demolition of existing bungalow and industrial workshops/storage sheds. 
Erection of 14no flats, car parking, landscape and works there to.

P15/V2288/PEJ – Pre-Application Inquiry (27/11/2015)
Demolition of existing bungalow and industrial workshops/storage barns.  
Erection of 14 no. flats, car parking, landscape and associated works.

P92/V0994 - Approved (19/03/1992)
Erection of an open ended vehicle shelter.

P85/V2061 - Approved (26/04/1985)
Construction of a single detached bungalow. (Site area 0.19 hectare).

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 This scale of development does not require an EIA.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 Officers consider the main issues to be as follows:

 The impact of the increase in height on the surrounding area
 The impact of the increased height, and of relocating a bedroom into the 

roofspace, on neighbours and on parking
 The weight to be attached to the consideration of intentional 

unauthorised development

5.2 The Impact of the Increase in Height on the Area
The change has increased the height of the main three storey element by 
approximately 600mm, from 11.7m to 12.3m. As a proportion, this is an 
increase of 5% in the height of this part of the building. Officers understand the 
inevitable emotions generated by a retrospective application of this nature. 
However, the application should be assessed on its planning merits and on 
whether any harm can be verified from the change now that the building exists. 
When viewed on site, and compared to what was approved, officers consider 
this change has not been sufficient in size to cause planning harm to the 
character or appearance of the locality in terms of its visual impact. 
Consequently, officers consider the application accords with policy CP37 of 
LPP1.

5.3 As neighbours have pointed out, the reduction in height of the building by 
600mm was requested by committee, and then approved, when it considered 
the reserved matters application for the development in 2017 (P17/V0134/RM). 
The request was made due to concerns about the impact of the building on its 
surroundings. The applicants agreed to lower the roof pitch from 50 degrees to 
45 degrees, which led to the 600mm reduction. The applicant’s agent states 

Page 44

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V0527/O
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V2288/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P92/V0994
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P85/V2061


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

that, by error, the original set of plans, at 600mm higher, were sent from the 
architect’s office to the project team for the development, and this is what has 
led to the discrepancy.

5.4 In terms of assessing the difference, and the impact of the building on its 
surroundings, members now have the benefit of seeing the building as 
constructed, as opposed to visualising it before construction. Officers’ advice is 
that members should make the assessment of the building as it has been 
constructed to determine whether any planning harm has been caused.

5.5 The Impact on Neighbours and on Parking
The site is bounded on the north and east side by neighbouring dwellings. The 
nearest neighbouring dwelling to the east is Bayside. Further away are the 
dwellings at no.2, no.4. and no.6 Steptoe Close. The closest elements of the 
increase in height to Bayside itself are the two east-facing gables. These lie 
approximately 18m from the side wall of Bayside. In light of this distance, and 
the size of the increase, officers do not consider that any planning harm has 
been caused to this neighbour, or to neighbours in Steptoe Close, in terms of 
loss of light or dominance. The nearest neighbours to the north are no.4 and 
no.7 Cotton Close. These properties are at least 30m away from the nearest 
part of the building that has been increased in height. Given this distance, and 
the amount of change to the height, officers do not consider that harm has 
been caused to these neighbours. Nearest neighbours on the opposite side of 
Denchworth Road are also at least 30m from the part of the building that has 
increased in height. Overall, therefore, officers do not consider that the 
increase in height has caused harm to neighbours’ amenities, and the 
development complies with policy DP23 of LPP2.

5.6 The two new rooflights in the west elevation look towards the open space in 
front of the development on the opposite side of Denchworth Road. Approved 
upper floor windows also look in this direction. Therefore, officers consider that 
the rooflights cause no harm to neighbours from overlooking, and the 
development is also compliant with policy DP23 of LPP2 in this regard.

5.7 The relocation of a bedroom from the second floor to the roofspace has not 
changed the total number of bedrooms on the development. The space that 
was occupied by the bedroom on the second floor has been used to enlarge 
the lounge of Flat 10. Consequently, there have been no implications for 
parking, which remains as approved and is satisfactory. Therefore, the 
development complies with policies CP35 of LPP1 and policy DP16 of LPP2.

5.8 To ensure that any future proposed change to the roofspace for the purposes 
of creating accommodation is properly assessed, it is considered reasonable 
and necessary that a condition is imposed to require any future changes to 
create accommodation in the roofpsace to be subject to an application for 
planning permission. The reason is to allow for consideration of the impacts on 
neighbours and the impacts on parking.

5.9 The Issue of Intentional Unauthorised Development
An application of this nature raises the issue of intentional unauthorised 

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

development, which the Government introduced as a material consideration in 
such cases in 2015. In this instance, officers consider the evidence does not 
support any contention that the changes made to the development were carried 
out intentionally, but rather that this has arisen from a genuine error, due to the 
wrong set of drawings being sent out from the architect’s office. Consequently, 
officers consider that no weight should be attached to this particular material 
consideration.

5.10 Other Issues
Members are aware that, notwithstanding the original objections of Grove 
Parish Council, any approval of this application does not mean that further flats 
will be approved on this site. 

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 Officers consider that the increase in height is too small, in the context of the 

scheme, to cause harm to its surroundings from its visual impact, or harm to 
neighbours’ amenities from loss of light or dominance. The two new rooflights 
do not cause harm through overlooking. There has been no change in the 
number of bedrooms in the development so there are no implications for 
parking. Consequently, officers consider the development as built complies with 
relevant policies of the development plan, and is acceptable.

 
6.2 The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 1 (LPP1)

CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking

CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2 (LPP2)

DP16  -  Access

DP23  -  Impact of Development on Amenity

Vale of White Horse Design Guide (SPD 2015)

National Planning Policy Framework, 2019

Planning Practise Guidance, 2014 onwards

Other Relevant Legislation
Human Rights Act 1998
The application has been assessed in the context of the Human Rights Act 1998 
and in particular the provisions of Article 1 and Article 8. The objections made 
by individuals have been weighed against the public interest and officers 
consider the recommendation is proportionate.

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 10 March 2021

Equality Act 2010
Officers have assessed the application in light of Section 149 of the Equality 
Act, It is considered that no member(s) of a prescribed group will suffer 
discrimination as a result of what is proposed in the application. In determining 
this planning application

Author: Martin Deans
Email:  martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 47

mailto:%20martin.deans@southandvale.gov.uk


I 
I 

-

LEGEND 

denotes proposed tree planting -
SB - Silver Birch - Betula pendula 
RO - Rowan - Sorbus acuparia 
CH - Bird cherry - Prunus padus

denotes proposed low hedgerow planting,
eg. Buxus sempervirens 

denotes proposed mixed shrubbery 
planting, eg. Lavandula angustifolia, Hebe 
kirkii, Salvia officinalis, Euphorbia characias
wulfenii, Rosa kent 

denotes existing landscape features to be
removed 

7 

denotes existing scrubby hedgerow to be
removed COTTON CLOSE 

denotes existing neighbouring buildings 

denotes grassed area (within site boundary) 

denotes grassed area (to neighbouring DCC
land) 
denotes Bretts Varano concrete paving
(Pallido textured) 
denotes Bretts Alpha Antique block paving 
(colour to be mix of Silver Haze and Charcoal)
denotes bitmac surfacing - final specification 
to be agreed with Oxfordshire County Council
Highways Engineer 

I this drawing is based on a topographical
survey by Glanville 

carports 

dotted line to indicate extent 4

of Oak tree canopy as surveyed 
by Glanville Consulting 

e xis tin g ve h icu I a r en tr a nc e�t:-::o'b:-c:-e--=----=---=---=---=---=--=-=====�
stopped up, existing grass verge to be 
reinstated subject to DCC approval 

revision notes 

proposed footpath to cross over
OCC land subject to relevant 
approvals 

PROPOSED SITE 
0 2m 10m 
ruw� 

LAYOUT 

all dimensions must be checked on site and 

not scaled from this drawing - refer any 

discrepancies to project architect 

for use in precise named location only 

drawing remains copyright of the author 

A 21/04/17 provisionally TPO'd Oak retained and scheme amended accordingly through discussion with officers
B 26/05/17 notation in relation to culvert and boundary hedgerow amended 
C 22/10/20 retrospective revision 
D 18/01/21 retrospective revision 

client 

D PINK INVESTMENTS 
project 

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 
THE BUNGALOW, DENCHWORTH ROAD, GROVE 
drawing 

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT 

dotted lines to indicate 
existing trees to be removed

T 01235 760693 

E info@allistergodfrey.com 

W www.allistergodfrey.com 

date 

18/01/17 
scale 

1 :200 (a) A2 

drawing no. 

198-Pl

drawn 

AG 

rev 

D 

Appendix 1

P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 P19/V1998/RM - Land North of Dunmore Road, Abingdon
	Appendices 1-2
	Appendix 1  Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	Appendix 2 Overall Site Layout


	8 P20/V2810/FUL - Brakspear's Yard, Denchworth Road, Grove, Wantage
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1 Site Plan
	Appendix 1 Elevations 1
	Appendix 1 Elevations 2
	Appendix 1 Floor Plans 1
	Appendix 1 Floor Plans 2



